
Page 1 of 2 
 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH      
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
Web:  www.surfsidebeach.org 
 (843) 913-6111     (843) 238-5432 
 
 
 
 
       

Surfside beach TOWN COUNCIL  
Regular MEETING agenda 

Council chambers 
 Tuesday, July 23, 2013  6:30 p.m. 

 
 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Douglas F. Samples 
 
 2.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Pastor Kay Standaland, South  
  Strand Assembly of God     
 

 3.   AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
 4.   MINUTES APPROVAL - Regular Meeting – July 9, 2013 

 
 5.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items Only. (3-minutes per speaker) 
 
   6.   COMMUNICATIONS 
  A.   Department Reports 
   i.   Finance   
   ii.   Recreation 
   iii.  Public Works 
  B.   Administrator’s Report 
   i. Update on Current Events 
   ii. Procedures for committees/committee members to solicit donations to  
    fund specific Town Council approved projects not funded in the budget 
  
 7.   BUSINESS 
  A.   First Readings of Ordinances 
   i. 13-0754 to amend §2-20(b) Travel Per Diem, Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry  
    and Councilmember Stevens    
   ii. 13-0755 to amend §2-23 Registration of dogs, to exempt service dogs  
    from registration fees, Administrator Fellner 
   iii. 13-0756 to add Chapter 12, Article 5, Stormwater Retention Ponds   
    allowable boats on town stormwater retention ponds, Administrator Fellner 
   iv. 13-0757 to amend §13-52(d)(8) Marine Construction, to eliminate docks,  
    Administrator Fellner 
  B. 6th Avenue South Pond, Director Adair  
  C. 50th Anniversary Plans & Events and Town Magazine, Administrator Fellner 
   
 7. BUSINESS, continued 

PUBLIC NOTICE:  Town Council Workshop, Tuesday, August 13, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. to 
Discuss Horry Georgetown Technical College Signage Recommendations. 



                Town of Surfside Beach Town Council Meeting 
                Town Council Chambers  Tuesday, July 23, 2013 
                Agenda, Continued 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
  D. Recommendation from Keep Surfside Beach Beautiful Committee, Administrator  
   Fellner 
  E. Committee Appointments (may be deferred until after executive session)    
   i. Recreation/Special Events (1 vacancy): Linda Woodlief; Cindy Grace, and  
    Erin Adams 
   ii. Construction Board of Adjustments & Appeals (1 vacancy):  David Morrison  
 
   8.   DISCUSSION – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council. 
 
  Stormwater Millage and the Disposition and past, present and future expenditures of  
  stormwater funds, Councilmember Stevens  
 
   9.   PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments. (5-minutes per speaker) 
 
 10.   COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
 11.   EXECUTIVE SESSION - Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss the appointment  
  of a person or persons to a public body (See Item 7.E. above.) 
  
 12.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



























































July 18,2013

  
June YTD FY 12-13 Over (Under) June YTD
2013 2012-2013 Budget Budget 2012 2011-2012

Revenue:
Income Rents/Leases 20,500$         72,768$         74,773$        (2,005)$         20,232$      60,232$          
Other Income-Admissions 11,909           48,126           50,000          (1,874)           12,333        49,251            
Other Income-Fishing 25,656           107,555         100,000        7,555            25,020        108,721          
Meter Income -                     25,074           80,000          (54,926)         12,712        68,557            
Meter Income-Lanier 12,419           29,513           -                    29,513          
Parking Fines-Lanier 1,100             3,255             -                    3,255            
Gain/(Loss) on sale of F/A -                     1,111             -                    1,111            
Interest Income 14                  758                -                    758               53               929                  
Miscellaneous Income 162,500      162,500          
Transfer from Hospitality 375,000         375,000         -                    375,000        

Total Revenues 446,598$       663,160$       304,773$      358,387$      232,850$    450,190$        

Expenses:
Operating Expenses 2,024$           21,693$         24,756$        (3,063)$         4,218$        18,602$          
Lanier(Operating) 2,739             11,531           12,000$        
Bank Fees(Lanier) 136                310                
Depreciation Expense -                     -                     81,125          (81,125)         59,495        59,495            
Interest Expense (Loan) -                     18,335           18,335          -                    -                  22,037            
Transfer General Fund (10%) -                     30,477           30,477          -                    -                  7,855              

Total Expenses 4,899$           82,346$         166,693$      (84,188)$       63,713$      107,989$        

Advance due G F - Principal -                     -                     163,000        (163,000)$     -                  -                      

Net Operating 441,699$       580,814$       (24,920)$       605,575$      169,137$    342,201$        
 

  
June YTD FY 12-13 Over (Under) June YTD
2013 2012-2013 Budget Budget 2012 2011-2012

Revenue:
Sanitation Fees 134,916$       1,169,910$    1,064,135$   105,775$      112,067$    1,067,403$     
Grants, Gain/(Loss) on sale of F/A 502                3,161             -                    3,161            546             6,952              
Interest Income 82                  2,101             1,500            601               148             2,820              

Total Revenues 135,500$       1,175,172$    1,065,635$   109,537$      112,761$    1,077,175$     
 
Expenses:
Salaries & Operating Expenses 86,451$         915,071$       944,812$      (29,741)$       121,978$    923,025$        
Depreciation Expense -                     -                     125,000        (125,000)       85,866        85,866            
Transfer General Fund (5%) 45,375           100,000         100,000        -                    -                  27,804            

Total Expenses 131,826$       1,015,071$    1,169,812$   (154,741)$     207,844$    1,036,695$     

Net Operating 3,674$           160,101$       (104,177)$     (95,083)$     40,480$          

Sanitation Fund

Town of Surfside Beach
June 30,2013(PRELIMINARY)

Enterprise Funds

Pier Enterprise Fund



7/18/2013dk 7

Town of Surfside Beach
Lanier Parking Solutions
2013-2014 Estimated Expenses for June

Pier Hospitality Total Pier Hosp Total
BUDGET VARIANCE Meters Meters Meters Citations Citations Citations

2013 Revenue Expenses Net Net to Budget
February -$                7,516.91$       (7,516.91)$   (9,336.66)$    1,819.75$     -$            -$               -$               -$              -$             -$            
March 5,013.71          11,431.68       (6,417.97)     (2,454.51)      (3,963.46)      2,916.00     1,497.71        4,413.71        350.00          250.00         600.00        
April 15,455.79        11,012.86       4,442.93      8,333.48       (3,890.55)      6,046.00     7,729.79        13,775.79      505.00          1,175.00      1,680.00     
May 29,085.02        13,693.81       15,391.21    16,582.07     (1,190.86)      8,132.00     17,453.02      25,585.02      1,300.00       2,200.00      3,500.00     
June 44,062.79        14,000.00       * 30,062.79    35,962.69     -5899.9 12,419.00   27,658.79      40,077.79      1,100.00       2,885.00      3,985.00     
July -               *
August
September
October
November
December

YTD 93,617.31$      57,655.26$     35,962.05$  49,087.07$   (13,125.02)$  29,513.00$ 54,339.31$    83,852.31$    3,255.00$     6,510.00$    9,765.00$   

* Estimated Summary ytd
Revenue Expenses Net

Capital Purchases Pier 32,768.00$    20% 11,531.05$   21,236.95$  
Meters 60,849.31      80% 46,124.21     14,725.10    

Pier 26,613.03$      Total 93,617.31$    57,655.26$   35,962.05$  
Hosp 203,028.32      

Summary Month
Total 229,641.35$    Pier 9,432.00$      20% 2,738.76$     6,693.24$    

Meters 19,653.02      80% 10,955.05     8,697.97      
Total 29,085.02$    13,693.81$   15,391.21$  

 ACTUAL



RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
JULY 2013 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS 
 
The 4th of July Celebration was held in the pier parking lot.  Entertainment was provided by 
Steve Fairchild, aka “Garth and Friends” and the show was fantastic.  SAFER prepared and 
sold concessions of hamburgers, hot dogs and drinks with a gross income of $3,700.00.  A 
water slide and a slip and slide were provided at no charge for the children.  4th of July T-shirts 
were purchased and sold for $5.00 with a total gross income of $2,155.00.  Small American 
flags were given away with the purchase of a t-shirt.  The fireworks display lasted 25 minutes 
and was the best so far.  Attendance was believed to be the largest so far as well.  Traffic was 
controlled extremely well by the Police Department and the Fire Department was excellent with 
the set-up and safety measures with the fireworks’ company as well as assistance to me with 
the water slides.  Public works provided two crews for assistance with the fireworks company.  
A huge thank you goes to all three departments.  The event was a great success again. 
 
 Kids Fair was held on Monday, July 15th at Fuller Park from 4 p.m. to 7 p.m.  There were a 
total of 16 “kid friendly” vendors such as The Palace Theatre, Ripley’s Aquarium, Children’s 
Museum, Wild Water and Wheels, Mad Science, Horry County Parks & Recreation and Inlet 
Square Mall to name a few.  Entertainment was provided by DJ Jeff Benton. New York Life 
attended and provided free IDs for the children which included a photo and fingerprints.  
Inflatables, face painting, pizza, drinks and ice cream were available at no charge to children 
10 & under with a wristband.  500 wristbands were distributed.  Parents and older children 
could purchase a pizza slice for $1.00 as well as drinks for a $1.00 with a total gross income 
on both of $225.00. Drinks were purchased from Sam’s Club and pizza from Ultimate 
California Pizza. Game Truck provided free video games for the children and free train rides.  
The Fire Department was on site with a truck and free fire hats for the children.   
 
The Youth Association has finished their youth athletic programs for the year and is preparing 
a final report on things accomplished as well as any problems and financial information. 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
1.  BEACH LUAU – Monday – 6 p.m. to 10 p.m. – on the beach at the pier  
 
2.  GUY DANIELS MEMORIAL SURFOFF – Saturday/Sunday – August 17th * 18th – 13th 
Avenue South 
 
3.  MOVIES AFTER DARK – Thursdays – 9 p.m. – Martin Field – beginning June 6th through 
August 29th  -  A schedule of dates and movies is on the town’s website. 
 
4.  SUNDAY SERENADES – Sundays – 2 p.m. to 5 p.m. – Passive Park – beginning May 26th 
through September 1st 

 
5.  FARMERS’ MARKET – Tuesdays – 10 a.m. to 3 p.m. – Park/parking lot corner of Surfside 
Drive and Poplar Drive North – beginning May 28th through October 29th. 



  

 
PUBLIC WORKS MONTHLY REPORT 

June 20th – July 17, 2013 
 

 
SANITATION DIVISION (FTEs – 9) 
 
Residential Service – Four carts were delivered once the certificates of occupancy had been issued; 
seven carts were delivered upon owner request and twenty-two carts were delivered to handle overflow.  
Seven carts were repaired and three were replaced.  Sanitation supervisor responded to three calls 
regarding ordinance enforcement; sixteen calls regarding late put outs and/or questions about bulk/yard 
debris pick up, three calls involving billing questions, nine miscellaneous calls and/or questions, five 
complaints, and eight follow-up calls.   
 
Commercial Service – Service routes continue to be updated based on business needs.  Four accounts 
increased service days and fifteen accounts required extra pick-up services due to overflow.  Supervisor 
explained commercial collection schedules to four new businesses:  Marketing Provisions, Car Rental 
Associates, Insurance Co. Records, and Lazers Pizza.  One account, Surfside Pizza, was notified its’ 
dumpster needed to be replaced.  Supervisor confirmed new dumpster is on site. Shop crew repaired the 
Town Hall dumpster.  Supervisor responded to one complaint, six follow-ups, and three miscellaneous 
calls.  
 
Recycling News – Twelve carts were delivered to town residents upon request.   One cart was replaced, 
and four carts were removed per request.  Supervisor responded to eight miscellaneous calls with 
questions about recycling, one call regarding e-waste disposal, two complaints, and one ordinance 
enforcement call.   
 
Beach Recycling – 3.18 tons of recyclable material was collected off the beach in May and June.   
 
Summer Sanitation – Supervisor responded to six calls regarding summer sanitation service.           
 
In June we collected 506 tons of solid waste, 44.24 tons of mixed debris, 123.08 tons of yard debris, and 
44.87 tons of recyclables.   
 
Crews assisted with the 4th of July Celebration and Kids Fair. 
 
STREETS & DRAINAGE DIVISION (FTEs –8) 
 
The Beach – Crews are raking the beach and swash outlets are being dug out to ensure proper water flow 
three times a week, weather permitting.  Beach cans are being serviced three times a week as well as on 
weekends, weather permitting.       
 
On-going/Special Projects: 
 

• Adopt-A-Highway – Crews removed 48 bags of litter from Highway 17 between March and 
June.  That amounts to 720 pounds of trash!     

• Crews are trimming trees and removing overhanging branches throughout Town. 
• Trimming and maintenance is being done on ditches and Town right-of-ways.     
• Repairs were made to the Shower Tower at 2nd Avenue N.  Crew continues maintenance and 

repairs on existing showers as needed.          
• Mosquito spraying is being done town wide Tuesday and Friday mornings, weather permitting. 
• Mowing and trash pick-up is being done on medians, town right-of-ways and parking lots.     
• Street sweeping is being done on Mondays and Fridays, weather and time permitting.         
• Dirt – Crews completed two deliveries to town residents.  Dirt is still available free of charge to 

town residents who come to Scipio Lane and load up the dirt themselves between the hours of 



  

8:00am until 3:00pm on the third Saturday of each month.  Town residents requesting delivery 
must have the Public Works Director or Street Supervisor inspect the delivery site and issue an 
inspection ticket confirming proper usage of the dirt prior to placing an order at Town Hall.  This 
inspection will insure that the dirt is not being used to fill in ditches and/or swales that would 
interfere with our storm water drainage.  An appointment can be made to pick up dirt other days 
by calling Public Works at (843) 913-6360.    

• Five reports were sent to Santee Cooper identifying street lights that were not functioning 
properly.  

• 50/50 Ditch Piping program has been suspended for the spring/summer but applications are still 
being accepted for consideration when the program resumes in the fall.     

• Crew assisted with the 4th of July Celebration and Kids Fair.     
• From June 20th through July 17th Public Works assistant answered 341 incoming calls.   

204 of those calls dealt with sanitation questions/concerns/complaints;  2 calls were from vendors 
providing product information and/or quotes;  53 calls dealt with street/drainage issues, 
streetlights, and questions about driveway inspections and dirt delivery; 19 calls dealt with 
parks/grounds issues; 13 were internal calls dealing with department and/or personnel issues 
and/or questions;   23 calls were received for the Public Works Director; 27 calls dealt with  
miscellaneous questions, wrong departments and/or telemarketers. 

 
GROUNDS DIVISION (FTEs-4) 
 

• Repairs have been made to the fountain at 9th Avenue South pond.  Replacement light bulbs are 
on order and should be installed soon at Dogwood Lake.   

• Maintenance and irrigation repairs were completed at the Veterans’ Memorial.        
• Field maintenance and needed repairs continue throughout baseball season at Huckabee Complex 

and Martin Field.   
• Mowing, trimming, and weeding are taking place at Town properties, parks, and flower beds.    
• Crews have resumed spraying of town lakes as weather permits.   
• Crew assisted with the 4th of July Celebration and Kids Fair.       

  
 
FLEET MAINTENANCE DIVISION (FTE-2) 
 
From June 20th through July 17th our mechanics completed seventy-one (71) repairs on Town vehicles and 
equipment.  Four (4) vehicles had flats repaired and one (1) vehicle had tires replaced.  Bi-weekly fleet 
tires checks and fire extinguisher inspections were completed on all Public Works vehicles and/or 
equipment.   “Preventive” and “Scheduled” maintenance (consisting of lube, oil & filter changes, brake 
inspections, tire rotations and fluid checks) were performed on thirty-seven (37) Town vehicles and/or 
equipment.  
 
FACILITIES (FTE-2)   
   

• Crews installed tile flooring and a new toilet at the Police Department.  
• Several vandalism repairs were made to bathrooms at the Pier and 5th Avenue South beach access. 
• Stenciled “FDC” notifications were painted on Ocean Blvd at the request of the Fire Dept..  
• A volleyball court was installed on the beach at 2nd Avenue South.     
• Carpet installation at Town Hall has been completed.      
• A flag pole has been installed at Martin Park. 
• Crew assisted with the 4th of July Celebration.   
   

 
PIER – 
 

• Several repairs have been made to the pier lighting and sinks, due to vandalism. 



Consensus Items 
i. Procedures for committees/committee members to solicit donations to fund specific Town 

Council approved projects not funded in the budget. 

a. I would suggest that our ordinance be followed and below is a copy of the all the statutes 
that would apply. 

b. I would suggest that all committees and groups be given a copy of these statutes. 

c. The proper procedure would be to present the solicitation plans to the Administrator. 

i. The Administrator will have authority to agree or disagree when non-profit 501-
C3 organizations or other charitable groups making the request when it will not 
interfere with the smooth operation of the town (e.g., Girl Scout cookie booth, 
high school car wash, etc.). 

ii. The Administrator will bring before council all requests for solicitations that will 
be made in the town’s name or for the benefit of the town. In such cases all 
monies shall follow the towns prescribed order for donations, gifts, and the 
general handling of town funds. Donations are tax deductible only when the 
entity soliciting those funds is a 501-C3. It shall be communicated to all donors, 
prior to the acceptance of a donation whether or not the donation is tax 
deductible.  Handling of all funds shall be as follows: 

1. A numbered receipt book will be provided by the town and all donations 
shall be receipted with a copy to both the donor and the town. 

2. A check shall be the preferable method of payment. 

3. All funds shall be turned into the Finance Department by the next 
business day. 

4. Finance shall keep an accounting of these funds. 

5. Expenditures, preapproved by council, must be accompanied by 
receipt(s) and/or invoice(s) and shall be presented to the administrator 
who will request that a check be processed within the appropriate 
timeframe. 

d. Sec. 4-2. – Definitions - The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this 
article, shall have the meaning ascribed herein: 

i. Charitable purpose means benevolent, philanthropic, patriotic, or eleemosynary 
purpose, which does not result in personal gain to a sponsor, organizer, officer, 
director, trustee, or person with ultimate control of the organization. A charitable 
organization shall be deemed a business subject to a license tax unless the entire 
net proceeds of its operation, after necessary expenses, are devoted to charitable 
purposes. Compensation in any form to a sponsor, organizer, officer, director, 
trustee, or person with ultimate control of the organization shall not be deemed a 
necessary expense of operation.  

e. Sec. 4-25. - Solicitation for charitable purposes. 

i. (a) [Permissions to solicit required.] It shall be unlawful for any person to solicit 
or attempt to solicit for charitable purposes unless written permission is obtained 
in advance from the town administrator or designated representative. "Charitable 
purpose" means benevolent, philanthropic, patriotic, or eleemosynary purpose, 
which does not result in personal gain to a sponsor, organizer, officer, director, 



trustee, or person with ultimate control of the organization as defined by section 
4-2. It shall be the duty of the administrator or designated official to investigate 
each applicant to ensure that the solicitation is for a legitimate charitable 
organization recognized by the state or the Internal Revenue Service. The 
administrator or designated official shall have sole discretion to determine if the 
request is worthy of assistance by the citizens of the town.  

ii. (b)[Issuance of permit.] If the town administrator or designated representative 
finds that the solicitation is for a valid charitable purpose, under the control and 
supervision of responsible and reliable persons, then such official shall authorize 
issuance of a permit.  

iii. (c)Exemption for proselytizing. Religious organizations soliciting for the sole 
purpose of proselytizing within the town's corporate limit shall be exempt 
hereunder; provided, however, that said religious organization's representatives 
shall immediately leave the premises of any resident upon being requested to do 
so. (Ord. No. 09-0662, 4-14-09)  

f. Sec. 4-26. - False statements. 

i. Upon discovery that the solicitation campaign has resulted in the occurrence of a 
misrepresentation of facts or the making of untrue statements, the town 
administrator or designated representative shall immediately suspend such 
permits and/or licenses and present to the holder of the permit and/or license a 
notice of suspension. (Ord. No. 09-0662, 4-14-09)  

g. Sec. 4-27. - Prohibited in certain places. 

i. No selling, peddling, hawking, drumming or commercial solicitation is allowed 
on the beach, town streets, town sidewalks, walkways to beach or other public 
property. (Ord. No. 09-0662, 4-14-09)  

h. Sec. 4-28. - Persons in vehicles. 

i. Literature cannot be distributed to anyone in a vehicle, parked or moving. Other 
methods of solicitation cannot be attempted or contact made with anyone in a 
vehicle, parked or moving. (Ord. No. 09-0662, 4-14-09)  

i. Sec. 4-29. - Violations. 

i. Any person violating any provision of this article shall be deemed guilty of an 
offense and may be subject to a fine of up to five hundred dollars ($500.00) or 
imprisonment for not more than thirty (30) days, or both, upon conviction. Each 
day of violation shall be considered a separate offense. Punishment for violation 
shall not relieve the offender of liability for delinquent taxes, penalties, and costs 
provided herein. (Ord. No. 09-0662, 4-14-09)  

 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/14100/level3/VOLICOOR_CH4BULIPERE_ARTIINGE.html#VOLICOOR_CH4BULIPERE_ARTIINGE_S4-2DE�
http://library.municode.com/HTML/14100/level3/VOLICOOR_CH4BULIPERE_ARTIINGE.html#VOLICOOR_CH4BULIPERE_ARTIINGE_S4-2DE�


Ordinance No. 13-0754 
First Reading:  07/23/2013   

Second Reading: __________ 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    ) TO AMEND §2-20, COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS OF 
COUNTY OF HORRY  )  TOWN COUNCIL, ¶(b), Expense Reimbursement,  
    ) Specifically ¶¶ Travel Days Per Diem.  
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )          
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in council duly 
assembled on desire to amend the Town Code of Ordinances Section 2-20, Compensation and Benefits 
of Town Council, specifically paragraph (b) Expense reimbursement, subparagraph entitled Travel days 
per diem; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Section 2-20, Paragraph (b), subparagraph entitled Travel Days per diem of 
the Town Code of Ordinances of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, is hereby amended to 
state: 
 
Sec. 2-20.  Compensation and benefits of town council. 
 
 (b) Expense reimbursement. Any member of town council may receive payment for actual 
expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties, subject to:  
 
 The Town of Surfside Beach will reimburse town councilmembers for reasonable business travel 
expenses incurred while attending the annual retreat, official town business, and training. All business 
travel must be approved in advance by the town administrator. Councilmembers whose travel plans have 
been approved may request the town clerk to submit registration requests and make travel arrangements. 
The actual costs of travel, lodging, and other expenses directly related to accomplishing business travel 
objectives will be reimbursed by Surfside Beach.  
 
 Councilmembers are expected to limit expenses to reasonable amounts, i.e., amounts the 
councilmember would normally spend if he or she were paying. Expenses that generally will be 
reimbursed and require a receipt include the following: Airfare or train fare for travel in coach or economy 
class or the lowest available fare; car rental fees, only for compact or midsized cars; cost of negotiated 
rate for accommodations at the host lodging hotel or motel; fares for shuttle or airport bus service, where 
available, costs of public transportation for other ground travel; taxi fares, when there is no less expensive 
option; mileage costs for use of personal vehicles at the current IRS mileage rate.  
 
 Travel days per diem. When authorized to travel on official business whereby overnight lodging is 
required, councilmembers shall receive a flat rate reimbursement of eighty dollars ($80.00) per day to 
cover the costs of meals, tolls, parking, snacks, tips, and all other incidental expenses. Receipts for these 
expenses are not required. Council members shall not be required to return unspent travel days 
per diem. The Town shall follow Federal IRS regulations on when unspent travel days per 
diem is taxable income. 
 
 Note: Personal entertainment and personal care items are not reimbursed. Councilmembers who 
are involved in an accident while traveling on business should promptly report the incident to the town 
administrator. Vehicles owned, leased, or rented by Surfside Beach may not be used for personal use 
without prior approval. A family member or friend may accompany councilmembers on business travel 
when the presence of a companion will not interfere with successful completion of business objectives. 
The councilmember is responsible for all expenses incurred by a companion. Receipts should be clearly 
marked to identify expenses reimbursable to the councilmember. 
 
 When travel is completed councilmembers desiring reimbursement should submit original 
required reimbursable receipts and total mileage to the town clerk within thirty (30) days. Requests for 
reimbursement that are not made in a timely manner may be denied. Abuse of this business travel 
expense policy, including falsifying expense reports to reflect costs not actually incurred, is prohibited. 



Ordinance No. 13-0754 
First Reading:  07/23/2013   

Second Reading: __________ 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
 The Town of Surfside Beach will reimburse elected officials for 
approved business and training travel. The town administrator will have 
final approval, or when there is a dispute, reimbursement shall be decided 
by duly approved motion taken by Town Council at a regularly scheduled 
public council meeting. The town clerk, or other assigned personnel, shall 
make all travel arrangements.  Town Councilmembers shall be notified of 
upcoming events and the appropriate times to submit registration 
requests, specifying their needs are relate to lodging, travel, rental cars, 
and other needs when deemed appropriate. 
 
 Elected officials shall receive a per diem of eighty dollars ($80) per 
travel day for overnight travel.  Said per diem may be obtained in advance 
as long as the request for prepayment is made at the time of registration 
submission.  The per diem money is approved for meals, snacks, tips, 
parking, and all necessary expenses incurred when traveling.  Alcoholic 
beverages shall not be included for reimbursement.   Receipts for per diem 
expenditures and all unused per diem money shall be turned in to the 
town clerk within thirty (30) days of the last travel date. Should any 
councilmember fail to report expenses within thirty days from the last 
travel date, he or she shall forfeit expense reimbursement, and the 
councilmember thereafter shall forfeit any travel per diem allowance. 
 
 Current IRS mileage rates shall apply when an elected official uses a 
personal vehicle for travel. The councilmember shall report mileage to 
and from the meeting or event, and shall not include mileage for 
extraneous excursions, i.e. sightseeing detours, not included in the 
meeting or event. 
 
 A companion may accompany an elected official when the presence 
of a companion will not interfere with the successful completion of 
business objectives.  Per SC Code §5-7-170, the Town of Surfside Beach 
shall not pay for any expense for any traveling companion of an elected 
official, including but not limited to the companion’s meals, tips, travel 
arrangements, or any extra fees for events that the official chooses to 
attend to which he or she wants to include the traveling companion or 
any other expenses incurred by the companion.    
 
 Expenses that shall be reimbursed with prior approval may include 
the following:  airfare, train travel in coach or economy class or the 
lowest available fare; car rental fees for mid-sized or compact car; 
accommodations are reimbursed at the negotiated rates published by the 
Municipal Association or event sponsor, and cab expenses to and from the 
airport.  



Ordinance No. 13-0754 
First Reading:  07/23/2013   

Second Reading: __________ 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 Abuse of this travel expense policy, including falsifying expense 
report is prohibited. 
 
 All other portions of Section 2-20 are unchanged and shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
 SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the 
other provisions of this article, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and 
to this end the provisions of this article are declared to be severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the several sections hereof shall 
be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretation or 
effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this 
ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon approval at second 
reading by the Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside 
Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this ___ day of _______ 2013. 
 

____________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mary Beth Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore    Ann Dodge, Town Council    
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  
     
 
 
       Attest: 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Basis:   
 
Town Council adopted Resolution #13-138 at the July 12th special Town Council 
meeting, to allow small paddle boats on the town stormwater retention ponds, 
commonly referred to as “town lakes.”  The Resolution directed staff to present an 
ordinance to codify the terms set out therein.  Therefore, staff submits Ordinance #13-
0756 for Town Council’s consideration and approval.   
 
The Town Stormwater Committee met on Tuesday, July 16th, and formally concurred to 
support Resolution 13-138.  The Stormwater Committee also supports the proposed 
ordinance, but with one change.  The Stormwater Committee believes that sailboats 
should specifically be named as allowed on the stormwater retention ponds, because a 
sailboat would be considered “any other type boat.”  The committee members know 
residents who have been sailing boats in the ponds for some time.   
 
 Stormwater Committee recommendation:  Include “sailboats” as an allowable 
boat in Section 12.102. 
 
Subsequent to further research and inquiry, staff recommends the following 
amendments: 
 
 1.  Also allow flat bottomed fishing boats commonly referred to as “Jon” boats 
 that are propelled by paddles (no motors) that are frequently used in shallow 
 waters such as the town’s stormwater retention ponds in Section 12.102. 
 
 2.  Limit watercraft length to a maximum of 20-feet in Section 12.102. 
 
 3.  Limit all watercraft to two person capacity, which would change 4-person 
 canoe to 2-person canoe in Section 12.102. 
 
 4.  Have a legal review by the town attorney before second reading. 
 
Action Options:  
  
 1.  Approve ordinance as submitted. 
 2.  Approve ordinance with staff recommended changes. 
 3.  Approve ordinance with other changes. 
 4.  Deny ordinance. 

Consideration Paper 
 
Meeting Date: July 23, 2013      
Agenda Item:   First Reading Ordinance #13-0756 
Presented By: Administrator Fellner 
Topic:   To Codify Resolution #13-138 to Allow Canoes, Kayaks, and Small  
   Paddle Boats on Town Lakes and to Prohibit All other Boats 
 
 



Ordinance No. 13-0756 
First Reading:  07/23/2013   
Second Reading: _______ 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    ) TO AMEND CHAPTER 12, STREETS, SIDEWALKS, BEACHES, 
COUNTY OF HORRY  )  OTHER PUBLIC PLACES, TO ADD ARTICLE V, STORMWATER 
    ) RETENTION PONDS  
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )   
 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in council duly 
assembled on July 12, 2013 adopted Resolution #13-138 to allow Canoes, Kayaks, and Small Paddle 
Boats on Town Lakes and to Prohibit all Motorized Water Vehicles and any other type boat on Town 
Lakes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Staff was directed to present an ordinance to codify said Resolution #13-138. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, 
Chapter 12, Streets, Sidewalks, Beaches, Other Public Places, is hereby amended to add Article V, 
Stormwater Retention Ponds, which said Article V shall state: 
 
 Article V.  Stormwater Retention Ponds 
 
 12.100  Authority.  The Town Council of Surfside Beach has determined that the Public Works 
Director; the Planning & Zoning Director; the Building Official, and the Surfside Beach Police Department 
shall have jurisdiction to administer and enforce the provisions of this Article.    
 
 12.101 Definitions. 
 
 a.  Stormwater Retention Ponds.  Stormwater retention ponds include all bodies of water located 
within the corporate limits of the Town of Surfside Beach that are commonly referred to as “town lakes.”  
Said stormwater retention ponds have a minimal fresh water supply, and are primarily filled with 
stormwater runoff from throughout the town and from Horry County. 
 
 b.  Boats.  For the purposes of this chapter, a boat is defined as a small, open vessel for traveling 
on water.     
 
 12.102  Operation of small paddle boats. 
 
 Recreational boating is limited to the daylight hours in the stormwater retention ponds to the use 
of small paddle boats identified as four (4) man canoes; two (2) man kayaks, and two (2) man paddle 
boats. 
 
 12.103  Prohibited boats. 
 
 All other types of boats or watercraft are prohibited on the stormwater retention ponds, including 
but not limited to, any motorized boat or watercraft; commercial boats (unless part of a town approved 
project); jet skis; Sea Do boats; barges; houseboats, and any other type boat except those set out in 
Section 12.102 herein. 
 
 12.104  Storage. 
 
 No watercraft shall remain in a stormwater retention pond overnight.  Watercraft shall be removed 
daily and be stored on the owner’s land.   
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 13-0756 
First Reading:  07/23/2013   
Second Reading: _______ 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 12.105  Maintenance of Stormwater Retention Ponds. 
 
 The Town of Surfside Beach reserves the right to use motorized boats to properly treat and 
maintain the town’s stormwater retention ponds, and to employ commercial businesses that may use 
barges or motorized boats for projects to improve and maintain the stormwater retention ponds.  
 
 12.016  Penalties. 
 
 Any violation of this section shall be punished by a fine not exceeding five hundred ($500) dollars, 
plus fees and assessments, or by imprisonment for a period not exceeding thirty (30) days.  Each day of 
any violation of this Section shall continue shall constitute a separate offense.  
 
 All other portions of Chapter 12 are unchanged and shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
 SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the 
other provisions of this article, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and 
to this end the provisions of this article are declared to be severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the several sections hereof shall 
be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretation or 
effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this 
ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon approval at second 
reading by the Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside 
Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this ___ day of _______ 2013. 
 

____________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mary Beth Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore    Ann Dodge, Town Council    
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  
     
 
 
       Attest: 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 













Town of Surfside Beach 

Department of Public Works 

Decision Paper – 7/23/2013 

Presented by: John Adair, Director 

Subject- 6th Avenue South Pond 

Purpose- To move forward with the filling in/conversion of this Town-Owned property. 

Assumptions- The Public Works Department, community, and regulatory agencies do 
not object to this action. 

Facts- At some point a decision was made to create a VERY small pond at the NW corner of 

Willow Drive South and 6th Ave South. Since we cannot definitively identify who made the 
decision and it could possibly have been made by council, staff wanted to bring this matter back 
before council for a consensus. The issues involved are that we have tried to maintain this VERY 
small pond and keep it free of algae and aquatic weeds. This effort has proven to be expensive, 
time-consuming and ineffective. 

Public Works personnel have spent many hours spraying chemicals to treat the growth (as many 
times per season as the law allows) but it remains unsightly. They have tried dyes to prevent the 
sun from permeating the pond, but they flow out too quickly. They have also replaced the motor 
on the fountain several times, but due to the shallow water, it continues to bottom out during 
dry spells and pull in muck from the bottom which damages the motor. Basically, the pond is too 
shallow and too warm in the summer season to be anything except a breeding ground for 
mosquitoes and unwanted weeds. It should also be noted that the pond has no useful filtration 
or retention purpose, and has no appreciable effect on water quality. 

The process of obtaining preliminary approvals at the regulatory level has been underway since 
February of this year. In June, the Army Corps of Engineers issued a non-jurisdictional 
determination. Earthworks Group has done the surveying work, grading, drainage, and site 
plans, and has recently sent a Notice of Intent to DHEC, applying for a land disturbance permit 
under automatic general coverage. 

Recommendation-  Due to the negative impact that this pond has created in the 

community, and the strong desire of the Town to enhance the quality of life for the residents 
and visitors, I feel that we should proceed as quickly as possible to the operational phase of this 
project, and re-purpose this site. 


































































	07232013_tc_agenda_6ai_finance.pdf
	Taxes:
	Enterprise Funds:
	2 Mgmnt Statement June Prelim FY 2012-13.pdf
	June 13(PRELIM)

	1a Gen Fund June Prelim FY 2012-13 revised for taxes.pdf
	June 13PRELIM

	3 Spec Rev june prelim FY 12-13.pdf
	June 2013(PRELIM)

	6 Parking Prelim June 2013.pdf
	actual

	Enterprise June 5 Prelim  FY 2012-13.pdf
	June 13(PRELIM)


	07232013_tc_agenda_6aii_recreation.pdf
	SPECIAL EVENTS
	UPCOMING EVENTS

	07232013_tc_agenda_6aiii_public_works.pdf
	SANITATION DIVISION (FTEs – 9)
	Residential Service – Four carts were delivered once the certificates of occupancy had been issued; seven carts were delivered upon owner request and twenty-two carts were delivered to handle overflow.  Seven carts were repaired and three were replace...


